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From: ESNR-Value Wales  
Sent: 11 April 2017 13:10 
To: ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources 
Cc:  
Subject: Year of Legends Artwork Commissions 
 
Hi            , 
 
I thought I’d write up a few notes from our conversation yesterday. 
 
Lot 1 
 

The legal advice received confirms that we cannot award this contract 
“subject to finding a suitable location…”  Therefore, if we award the contract 
and if we are unable to proceed due to finding a suitable location (which we 
discussed was very unlikely) then there would be possible remedies by the 
contractor for termination of the contract by us.  [Legal advice request and 
response attached]. You said you were happy to proceed to award being 
informed of the risks involved. 
  
 
[The contents of the email attachments mentioned in this email are withheld 
under section 42 of FOIA (Legal Professional Privilege). Legal professional 
privilege protects confidential communications between lawyers and clients: it 
is a fundamental principle of English law.] 
 
 
We look forward to hearing from you soon. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
 
Gwasanaethau Caffael Corfforaethol / Corporate Procurement Services  
Gwerth Cymru / Value Wales  
Llywodraeth Cymru / Welsh Government  
 

 
From: ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources  
Sent: 11 May 2017 16:01 
To: ESNR-Value Wales; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Cc:  
Subject: RE: MA P KS 1724 17 - Outcome of Year of Legends art installation 
tender v2 (A17901185) 
 
Many thanks all, 
 
 



 
 
 
I've changed it to advise awarding Lot 1  
 
             - can you check this MA over and help             and           with the 
clearances and budget section etc. I'm ok for this to go but please feel free to 
make any further tweaks. if you want to change anything really substantive 
then call me on                       so we can discuss. 
 
This needs to go down by lunchtime tomorrow as I promised Cab Sec it would 
be this week. 
Department for Economy, Science and Transport     
Adran yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth  
Welsh Government    Llywodraeth  Cymru  
______________________________________________________________ 
From: ESNR-Value Wales  
Sent: 11 May 2017 14:50 
To: ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources 
Cc:  
Subject: MA P KS 1724 17 - Outcome of Year of Legends art installation 
tender v2 (A17901185) 
Importance: High 
 
Hi            , 
 
Please find attached the MA with both mine and              comments and 
suggested changes. 
 
Many thanks, 
 
ESNR-Value Wales has sent you a link to "MA P KS 1724 17 - Outcome of 
Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) from Objective. 
 

 
From: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw  
Sent: 12 May 2017 13:47 
To: ESNR Governance & Compliance; DGOT Financial Clearance E&I; 
Culture & Sport Mailbox; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport, Tourism & 
Marketing 
Cc: ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage 

& Sport-Cadw; ESNR-Value Wales; (ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Subject: URGENT - Seeking clearances - MA P KS 1724-17  
Importance: High 
 
Dear All 
 
I should be grateful if you would review revised MA P KS 1724-17 (attached) 
and provide clearances as necessary, if content - as soon as possible, please.  
We are still aiming to get this to the Cab Sec today 



 
Thank you for all your help. 
 

[The contents of MA P KS 1724 17 can be found at Appendix B] 

 

From: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw  
Sent: 15 May 2017 15:23 
To: ESNR-Value Wales 
Subject: RE: MAJOR ISSUES WITH THIS MA - MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome 
of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
 
The term 'ring of iron' was coined in the 19th century to describe the chain of 
castles built by Edward I after the first and the second Welsh wars of 
independence in the 13th century. These castles were used to cement 
Edward's successful campaigns and put an end to Welsh ambitions for 
independence from England once and for all. Flint was one of these castles. 
So in effect some people may see the 'ring of iron' as some sort of 
reinforcement or celebration of this. It's interesting to note that             , who 
had no sight of the proposal until now, thought this - but this may be because 
working as a civil servant in Wales we become sensitive to the politics. 
 
We might be able to challenge this with the inscriptions on the piece or by 
making it more Celtic in some way within the ring design itself - that would be 
something we would need to discuss with the artist through the design / 
consultation stages. 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: ESNR-Value Wales  
Sent: 15 May 2017 14:05 
To: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Subject: RE: MAJOR ISSUES WITH THIS MA - MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome 
of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
 
Hi          , 
 
Thanks, can you remind me what the ring represents in relation to how it 
celebrates the suppression of the Welsh people? 
 
Thanks, 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw  
Sent: 15 May 2017 13:22 
To: ESNR-Value Wales 
Subject: FW: MAJOR ISSUES WITH THIS MA - MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome 
of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
Importance: High 



 
See below,              has already had sight of the comments made by     
regards celebrating Welsh defeat: 
 
Other more important issues: 
 
Lot 1 
Paragraph 2 must contain the full cost of Lot 1. ( I note that we will be 
celebrating the suppression of the Welsh People by King Edward 1 with this 
art installation.) There are major issues around the siting of the Ring, which 
you describe within the MA. 
 
From: On Behalf Of ESNR Governance & Compliance 
Sent: 12 May 2017 08:14 
To: ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources; ESNR-Economy Skills and 
Natural Resources; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw; ESNR-Tourism, 
Heritage & Sport-Cadw; ESNR-Value Wales; ESNR-
TourismHeritage&SportTourism&Marketing; DGOT Financial Clearance E&I; 
ESNR Governance & Compliance 
Subject: MAJOR ISSUES WITH THIS MA - MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome of 
Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
Importance: High 
 
I started to write an email to you on this MA to cover basic formatting matters, 
then issues I see around both Lots, but I see so many issues on this MA that I 
decided to write this note instead.  
 
Can you confirm please that this has been approved by                    , that 
Legal advice has been obtained and that CPS are content for Lot 1 to be 
awarded.  That the issues around the siting of the Ring, especially the issues 
on the SSSI of the Dee estuary - looking at the attached documents - 
significant foundation is an understatement.  Do you have a build time for this, 
when is it planned to be opened, has Planning permission been sought. Will 
the cost of Lot 1 include survey fees, planning fees, construction cost, etc. etc. 
. 
Until I have clarity on these issues I cannot clear this MA. 
 
Thank you 
 
Formatting issues first: 
 
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
 



Governance and Compliance Branch/ Cangen Llywodraethu a 
Chydymffurfiaeth Economy, Skills and Natural Resources Group/ Grŵp yr 
Economi, Sgiliau a Chyfoeth Naturiol Welsh Government / Llywodraeth Cymru  
 
From: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Sent: 11 May 2017 17:17 
To: ESNR Governance & Compliance; DGOT Financial Clearance E&I; 
ESNR-TourismHeritage&SportTourism&Marketing; Culture & Sport Mailbox 
Cc:  
Subject: FW: Multiple Documents - "Annex A - Lot 1 The Iron Ring" 
(A17900933), "Annex B -  
 
 - Outcome of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
Importance: High 
 
Dear All  
 
I should be grateful if you would review the attached MA P KS 1724-17 and 
provide clearances as necessary, please.   
 
As you can see we are awaiting one small piece of info (a reference number) 
which I will insert when we receive it on Friday morning. 
 
We are aiming to get this to the Cabinet Secretary by mid-day Friday (12 May) 
and I am sorry for the short notice.  
 
Many thanks 
 
Hanesyddol / Historic Environment Branch Gwasanaeth Amgylchedd 
Hanesyddol (Cadw)  / Historic Environment Service (Cadw) Llywodraeth 
Cymru / Welsh Government  
 
From: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Sent: 11 May 2017 17:09 
To: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Cc:  
Subject: Multiple Documents - "Annex A - Lot 1 The Iron Ring" (A17900933),  
 
Outcome of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
 
Hi              , 
 
Here's the documents for the MA. We are working on 'v2' (the other document 
wouldn't save so we had to create a second one so sorry about any 
confusion. The two powerpoints are the supporting documents.            wants 
the MA to the Cab Sec by midday. 
 
The visit wales MA number needs to be inserted in para 7 ( I can't highlight 
the exact spot but you can see it in brackets in the first section: kss xxx visit 
wales. 



 
I am expecting to get this last piece of information from VW tomorrow am - 
there's no one in the office today (hopefully the ever reliable                   will 
have it...) 
 
Thank you 
 
ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw has sent you links to the following 3 
documents from Objective: 
"Annex A - Lot 1 The Iron Ring" (A17900933) "Annex B -            “ 
 
 - Outcome of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
 

 
From: ESNR-Value Wales  
Sent: 16 May 2017 16:13 
To: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Cc:  
Subject: Re: MAJOR ISSUES WITH THIS MA - MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome 
of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
 
Hi , 
 
Do you know if a response has been received on this yet? Has              said 
when he anticipates receiving a response? 
 
Thanks 
 
----- Original Message ----- 
From: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Sent: Friday, May 12, 2017 12:25 PM 
To: ESNR Governance & Compliance 
Cc: ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources; ESNR-Value Wales 
Subject: RE: MAJOR ISSUES WITH THIS MA - MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome 
of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
 
Hi          , 
 
It was very good to speak to you and thank you for your advice. I have 
amended the following: 
Para 4: I've included a breakdown of costs for Lot 1 - you see that the artist 
has made a provision for planning / surveys / legal fees within the costs. 
Para 5: advice to Minister Lot 1:  Now includes the statement: 'Any additional 
costs that may arise from necessary surveys, site investigations or 
archaeological investigation will be met through the Cadw Capital Works 
programme'. 
 
             will sort out the formatting cover sheet and CC list for recirculation. If 
you need additional re-assurance please let me know. 
 



 

 
From: ESNR-Value Wales  
Sent: 12 May 2017 09:54 
To: ESNR-Value Wales; ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources; 

ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Cc: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Subject: RE: MAJOR ISSUES WITH THIS MA - MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome 
of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
 
          /all, 
 
I've just spoken to           who is going to log in and provide a response to the 
other matters raised in the email. 
 
The pricing proposal from the bidder for Lot 1 is as follows (all figures exclude 
VAT).  Can you incorporate it into the MA where you consider appropriate        
? 
 

1. Artist Fees:  including design, 
development, consultations  

£30,000  

2. Cost of build stage, including materials £250,000 

3. Cost of transport and installation £90,000 

4. Any other costs (specialists costs 
(planning, legal, engineering for example 
– please specify)). 
  

Site preparation / archaeological 
excavation= £8,000 
Structural engineering = £9,000 
Lighting consultant = £2000 
Geotechnical survey= £4000 
Planning / legal = £2000 
 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT PAYABLE BY THE 
CLIENT 

£395,000 

 
I hope this helps. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: ESNR-Value Wales  
Sent: 12 May 2017 09:50 



To: ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources; ESNR-Value Wales; 
ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Cc: Subject: Re: MAJOR ISSUES WITH THIS MA - MA/P/KS/1724/17 - 
Outcome of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
 
Some of the questions          raises            is not in a position to respond to? 
Around the installation/interpretation etc?           can provide more info on the 
costs for Lot 1 in terms of what is listed in the bid but          alludes to potential 
costs above this that could be incurred. The majority of these questions are 
for CADW to respond to not            as procurement advisor.  I appreciate this 
may be an issue in terms of timescales            . 
 
----- Original Message ----- 
From: ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources 
Sent: Friday, May 12, 2017 09:31 AM 
To: ESNR-Value Wales; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Cc:  
Subject: RE: MAJOR ISSUES WITH THIS MA - MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome 
of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
 
Just spoken to           and he has said this must go to Cab Sec today - he 
asked if          could help with the formatting and if you could deal with the 
content please and keep           happy. 
 
Any probs, give him a call on his personal mobile                   . 
 
Thanks all 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: ESNR-Value Wales 
Sent: 12 May 2017 09:15 
To: ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources 
Cc:  
Subject: RE: MAJOR ISSUES WITH THIS MA - MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome 
of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
 
Thanks           .   
 
Can you contact             to make him aware (if you haven't already done so) 
as this won't go to the Cabinet Secretary today unless someone else can work 
on the formatting issues and I could perhaps provide some further 
information, e.g. regarding the pricing proposal from the bidder for Lot 1. 
 
Many thanks, 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources 
Sent: 12 May 2017 08:51 
To: ESNR-Value Wales 



Subject: FW: MAJOR ISSUES WITH THIS MA - MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome 
of Year of Legends art installation tender v2" (A17901185) 
Importance: High 
 
Hi        , I can see you've been left off the circulation list for this and know           
doesn't work on a Friday!!! 
 
Thanks 
 

 
From: ESNR-EconomySkillsNaturalResources On Behalf Of ESNR 

Governance & Compliance 
Sent: 12 May 2017 14:16 
To: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw; DGOT Financial Clearance E&I; 
ESNR-TourismHeritage&SportTourism&Marketing; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage 
& Sport-Cadw 
Cc:  
Subject: MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome of Year of Legends art installation 
tender 
Importance: High 
 
I can confirm clearance of V2 of this MA from ESNR Governance & 
Compliance, I have made some tracked changes to the cover sheet.  Please 
note that the Decision notice should not be published until the award of Lot 1 
has been made public. 
 
Thank you 
 
Governance and Compliance Branch/ Cangen Llywodraethu a 
Chydymffurfiaeth 
Economy, Skills and Natural Resources Group/ Grŵp yr Economi, Sgiliau a 
Chyfoeth Naturiol 
Welsh Government / Llywodraeth Cymru  
 

 
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
 
_____________________________________________ 
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
 
Cangen Amgylchedd Hanesyddol / Historic Environment Branch 
Gwasanaeth Amgylchedd Hanesyddol (Cadw)  / Historic Environment Service 
(Cadw) 
Llywodraeth Cymru / Welsh Government  
 

 
From: ESNR- Economy, Skills and Natural Resources On Behalf Of DGOT 
Financial Clearance E&I 
Sent: 12 May 2017 15:07 
To: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Cc: ESNR Governance & Compliance; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport, 
Tourism & Marketing; Culture & Sport Mailbox; DGOT Financial Clearance 
E&I 
Subject: RE: MA-P-KS/1724/17 - outcome of the Year of Legends Art 

Installations Tender  
 
Hi                     , 
 



No problem, theses things happen.   
 
Thank you for forwarding               e-mail.  I can confirm financial clearance 
(ref: EI/CF/17/115).  I have made a tracked change to the financial 
implications section. 
 
Many thanks 

[The contents of MA P KS 1724 17 can be found at Appendix B] 

Tim Gweithredu/Operations Team 
Grŵp yr Economi, Sgiliau a Chyfoeth Naturiol/Economy, Skills and 
Natural Resources Group 
Llywodraeth Cymru/Welsh Government  

 
_____________________________________________ 
From: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw  
Sent: 12 May 2017 14:59 
To: DGOT Financial Clearance E&I 
Cc: ESNR Governance & Compliance; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport, 

Tourism & Marketing; Culture & Sport Mailbox 
Subject: RE: MA-P-KS/1724/17 - outcome of the Year of Legends Art 

Installations Tender  
 
Apologies                   – I was told this could go.   
 
So that you are aware I had the attached from                        . 
 << Message: RE: MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome of Year of Legends art 
installation tender >>  
I will recall this now and await further instruction. 
 
Thanks 
 
_____________________________________________ 
From: ESNR- Economy, Skills and Natural Resources On Behalf Of DGOT 
Financial Clearance E&I 
Sent: 12 May 2017 14:54 
To: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Cc: DGOT Financial Clearance E&I; ESNR Governance & Compliance; 

ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport, Tourism & Marketing; Culture & Sport 
Mailbox 
Subject: RE: MA-P-KS/1724/17 - outcome of the Year of Legends Art 
Installations Tender  
 
Hi                 , 
 
Please can you recall this MA, we haven’t yet given it financial clearance.  
The reference in there relates to clearance of MA-P-KS-0239-16                     . 
 



We are unable to provide a clearance number until your local finance lead has 
cleared. 
 
Many thanks 
 
 << File: MA P KS 1724 17 - Outcome of Year of Legends art installation 
tender.obr >>  
 
 
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
Sent: 12 May 2017 14:42 
To: PS Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure 
Cc: E&I Ministerial Advice List; ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural 
Resources; (ESNR-Value Wales; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw; 
(ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw; CADW Ministerials; ESNR-
Economy Skills and Natural Resources 
Subject: MA-P-KS/1724/17 - outcome of the Year of Legends Art Installations 
Tender  
Importance: High 
 
Hi , 
 
Please find attached MA-P-KS/1724/17 in relation to the outcome of the Year 
of Legends Art Installations Tender, as promised, for the Cabinet Secretary’s 
consideration. This advice has been cleared by                                      . 
 
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

 

From: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport, Tourism & Marketing  
Sent: 12 May 2017 14:28 
To: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
Subject: RE: MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome of Year of Legends art installation 

tender 
 



I can confirm VW has set aside £460k for the YoL art installation and content 
for this MA to proceed. 
 
Thanks 
 
_____________________________________________ 
From: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw  
Sent: 12 May 2017 14:21 
To: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport, Tourism & Marketing 
Subject: FW: MA/P/KS/1724/17 - Outcome of Year of Legends art installation 

tender 
Importance: High 

 
Hi           
 
Would you be able to look at this ASAP, please? 
 
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
Cc: ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources; ESNR-Value Wales; 
ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural Resources; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & 
Sport-Cadw; ESNR-Value Wales 
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
& Sport-Cadw; ESNR-Value Wales; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw 
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
Sent: 12 May 2017 15:15 
To: PS Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure 
Cc: E&I Ministerial Advice List; ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural 
Resources; ESNR-Value Wales; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw; 
ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw; CADW Ministerials; ESNR-Economy 
Skills and Natural Resources 
Subject: MA-P-KS/1724/17 - Outcome of the Year of Legends Art 
Installations Tender  
Importance: High 
 
Hi  
 
Please find attached MA-P-KS/1724/17 in relation to the outcome of the Year 
of Legends Art Installations Tender, as promised, for the Cabinet Secretary’s 
consideration. This advice has been cleared by                        . 
 

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
 

From: PS Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure  
Sent: 17 May 2017 11:59 
To: ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw; PS Cabinet Secretary for 

Economy and Infrastructure 
Cc: E&I Ministerial Advice List; ESNR-Economy Skills and Natural 

Resources; ESNR-Value Wales; ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw; 
ESNR-Tourism, Heritage & Sport-Cadw; CADW Ministerials; ESNR-Economy 
Skills and Natural Resources; ESNR-Strategy-Communications 
Subject: RE: MA-P-KS/1724/17 - Outcome of the Year of Legends Art 

Installations Tender  

 
The Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure has noted and 
approved the recommendations at para 2.  
 
Can we issue a PN to say a proposal will be revealed this summer? 
 
Decision taken by the Cabinet Secretary – Summary for Decision 
Report: 

 
Subject Title:   Year of Legends Art Installations 

 
The Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure has agreed to award a 
commission for an artwork to celebrate the Year of Legends. 
 
After checking for factual/technical accuracy please arrange for the Decision 
Report to be sent, with the specified date of publication to 
DecisionReports@Wales.GSI.Gov.UK 
 
Many thanks 
 

Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure / Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet 
dros yr Economi a’r Seilwaith  

mailto:DecisionReports@Wales.GSI.Gov.UK

